
 
1 
 

 
 

Notice of a meeting of 
Cabinet 

 
Tuesday, 8 December 2015 

6.00 pm 
Municipal Offices, Promenade, Cheltenham, GL50 9SA 

 
Membership 

Councillors: Steve Jordan, John Rawson, Rowena Hay, Peter Jeffries, 
Andrew McKinlay, Jon Walklett and Chris Coleman 

 

Agenda  
    

  SECTION 1 : PROCEDURAL MATTERS  
    

1.   APOLOGIES  
    

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
    

3.   MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
Minutes of the meeting held on 10 November 2015 

(Pages 
3 - 14) 

    
4.   PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 

These must be received no later than 12 noon on the fourth 
working day before the date of the meeting 

 

    
  SECTION 2 :THE COUNCIL   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by the Council 

on this occasion 
 

    

  SECTION 3 : OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee on this occasion 
 

    

  SECTION 4 : OTHER COMMITTEES   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by other 

Committees on this occasion 
 

    
  SECTION 5 : REPORTS FROM CABINET MEMBERS 

AND/OR OFFICERS 
 

    

5.   HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT NEW BUILD - 
SWINDON ROAD SITE 

Report of the Cabinet Member Housing 

(Pages 
15 - 56) 

    



    

 
2 
 

6.   TREASURY MID-TERM REPORT 2015/16 
Report of the Cabinet Member Finance 

(Pages 
57 - 68) 

    

  SECTION 6 : BRIEFING SESSION   
  • Leader and Cabinet Members  

    
7.   BRIEFING FROM CABINET MEMBERS  

    
  SECTION 7 : DECISIONS OF CABINET MEMBERS   
  Member decisions taken since the last Cabinet meeting  
    

  SECTION 8 : ANY OTHER ITEM(S) THAT THE LEADER 
DETERMINES TO BE URGENT AND REQUIRES A 
DECISION 

 

    
 

Contact Officer:  Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager, 01242 774937 
Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 



�
�
�
�

�
������

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	���
�����������������������

�

��������
�

	
��������������������������
����������������

�

����������

�	
���	���� �������	
���������
�	�������	��������	������	���������
�����
����������	���� �!��������������
� �����!�
������!������"���
�����
�����������������
� 	���#���
$�
�����%���!��������������
�&����	'������������!���
�	�(��)������������������
��	
'	
������
����������
��
����	������������������
���������*
���+��
	�����
�

��	����������������� �	�����	
�,��� �
�����	�����	
��	#�
�(�!�	
����
�	�����	
���-�(��)��	�

�

���
����
�
�

��� ����������
.	�/�
�

��� �������������������������
$��������
��	��������������
�����	�'
�0�����������
������$#���������1�
��)��
��#��"�����'
	'	��������	�����	
�"����2�)�
���������
���	��
����������,	���		����������/�
�

��� ����������������������������
,����������	����������������#���
���''
	���������#���������	

����
��	
�/�
�

��� �� ����������� ���!�����������������������
!
����	��"�	#���������$����	"�%&�����������'��(����(�#��

34�����	��
��������	�!�	��
��)����������������$''���-�5.+�	������
�'	
�/�
 	����
��	�"�#��,(5�����
����������#�3��#���4�'������	�6���
�������
����
��#�������
��)���
�����������/�,��!������	�'�������3��#���4�'������	�6/�(�!�
��
��������	��'��������	������''
	'
�����
��)������	�����	���������	��
��#���
���	�����������������������	

����!�'��������	�$''���-�5.+���������
��������������������������
��)���	����'������	�76�

���)	����"�	#��	
���	��������*�""����'���+�������#+���"	���	
���,���

,�����
���'�
�#
�'��������
�'	
����#�����'������	��������'�!������������	������
�	����6��'	��
��	����8������	����������#�����'������	��	���	���#��	���#�
��	�)/�4�����	����
��)/��
,������	��'�
�#
�'���������''	
��	������'
	'	������	��		)��	
�'
	'�
�����	���

����
����������#����������
/�4����6����
��)������������#��������������
�'	
������
����'
�'�
�������'���������	����	������'
	'	�����	������

�����	����������������
�	�����	9����������-'�����	���	
���	�����������
�����������	��!���#�
'
	������	�����������	����'
	#
����#������'
	'	����	��
����
���������
/�
,������
��'�
�#
�'���	���	��
���
������
��)����������#������
��������8�����
����/�4��������	����������	������'
	'�
������
��������
��!��''
	'
�����������

Agenda Item 3
Page 3



�
�
�

�

�
��:���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��
�����������������������

�


�����
��	���	��������#����������'
	������	�����)�	����!�������
���
����	��
���	
���'���#���������
��	�
����#	�#��		���
��	�������	��!���#�
'
	����/�,���'
	������	
�	�����#���������	
����	����8���)������
��#���	
��
�/�
4��	�����	��������	
����	��	������������
�'	
����#�����'������	���	���	��
�����	��������	�������	
����
��)�����''���-�	���	�����
�'	
�/�.���
���������
���������������������	��������������#�����'������	���	���	�������������������	�
����
�'	
�/��
�
�

��� ����-�.��������.����/�������
�	�����	
�(�!�	
�������������	����
������������������
�	��������
���!�
,��)�*
	�'���,*�/�� ���-'���������������#
	�'������	�������	������	�	�
��
����������������)	��'
	���������������/� �����	��-'������������������
�������#���)����	�����������	��	���
�
����������������������������
��������
����
�'	
��������#�����	
��;�	����
	�������(	
�����
���
�����/�5����#�������
�	��
�����������
����#�����
�	����
���������������������	����������#�
��������������	��������
���	��������������������
	�#����	���		����#
	�����
����������!��	���
������������	����
���������������������	�����
����#�	�!�
	����#�������#�����8�����	��/�
� �
,�������
�	�������,*�����������	��	��#���
���
�'	��������
���	���-'����#�
�����	���������)�#
	�'�
��	�������	��<�
�

•� ��� '�
�� 	�� ���� 
����� ���� �,*� ���� ���� �	� �		)� ��� ���� �	�	� ��
�����
�
������� ���� �� $'
��� :=�>� ��
��� *
���� (����
� ��*(�� ���� ����
���
���� �� �-����	� 	�� ?/>� !��
�� �!� ���� &�'�
����� �	
� ,
��'	
��
�&�,���	����������	��	#�
�������
!/�

�

•� �	��	��#�����'��������	��!�.���	
)������	������(����
��	��������!���
�����:=�@�������������8����!��	�������������
���	����������	�
�!�
��
����� �	� "����#�	� �
	�� ���������� �� :=�1;�A/�  �� 
�������
�����
������������,*����������������	��	������������	����
������
'�������!��	����� ��&������
�:=�@�������������������
��'	��� �	�
����(����
��	��������!��	�������	/���

�

•� �2������ �������� �������� 	� 
���� ��
������� ���� ��� '�
�� 	�� �� �	������
����	
��!� �	��	��#����	����	� ����	���� ��� ���	
��	���� '	����	� �	� ���'�
���'�� �
��'	
�� ��
�����/� �
������#� 	�� ���#
����� �
��'	
��� ��� ��
�	����#�������
�����������	����
�	����

���!����������/�

�

•� �����
�6�������	������
����	�����'
�	
������������	����"�������	��
���� '
	'	����� ��� ��#���#����� �� ���� 
�'	
�� �� ��
��� 	�� '
	����#� �����
�8�����!�����������
�'�
)�#�����	
��	�
����'
	������/�
�

•� "
	��������	��!�#��	����#
������'
	����������$�����2�
�

�
,��������
����)���������
���!�,��)�*
	�'��	
�����
�'	
���������	��������
�	
)����
��)�/�$����!�������������������
������������
�'	
�����
'
	'	�����������������	����	�����������������#������	������)��������	�
���
��������	
�����������
��'	��/�4�
��'	����	�����'	���	����	����	����
�-'���������������������������
!���
�!����#��������������������	����

���!�������

Page 4



�
�
�

�

�
��?���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��
�����������������������

�

�������
���	�������	���
�	''	
���������	�����������/�,��������
���#���#���������
��'	
�����	��'
	�����#�����������	
)�	�"�����������������)�������#
	�'�
�	
�#���#��������
����
�����#�	�������
������#�'
	������/�
�

�����0��������

�(�����
���$���)	���+���	��������������������)	���+��+�	
,(��+��1��	�
��+�����"	���	���������	������
���	
���2�

�

��� �.����������-��/�����������.����/�������
,�������
�	��������
���!�,��)�*
	�'��!���#����(��)�#���	�����	
���-�
(��)��	���
	����������
�'	
��	������#
	�'/� �����)���������	�����	�����
'�
����'����������'�
������
��	�����	���	���������������,��)����
!�
�!���#����'��#����B�,�����2
	���,�	
�	�	��(��):������	��.����
!�
	������#���
����/�
�
,�������
�	�������,*��-'�������������������
�'	
�����������������������

�����5��
����������
���!��	�������������	��	��#�
���
����	����������
�-'
������<�
�

�/� �!����  ������� <� ,��� �,*� 
�'	
�� ���� 	������� ���� �
#����� �	
� 3	�
�������6����������������������������������
	#�!��!��!���#�#
	�'��� ��
�����	
�� �	�	
��������!���#������)�� ������	
�����
�������'
	'	����	�
�	����
	���
�
�#��	��'�	'��/�,������)�#
	�'���
��	����##����#������
�!������� ��	���� ��� �������� 	�� �	� ���
� �������� ���� 
����
� ����� �!�
'
	�	��	��� ���#�����	���� �����
���!�����������	����������� 
����
� ����
'
�����#������
�	�!'����� ���#��	���!����������
�#�������������������
��	���#/������
��	��5��
����������
���!���
���''
����������	���
�!����������#���	�
�#���	���	����
��������������	�#����������
�	������
�,*� ���� 
������� �����
�� ����� ���� #
	�'� ���� 	�� ��	�
�#�#�
�!�������	���	����
�������������������������
���
�������	�'
�������	�	��
�!���#���'
	�	��	�������
�����
����
�����������/�

:/� ,��� �,*� 
�'	
�� 	������� �	�� �������� ��##������ ����� �	��
� �'����
�������
��������	#����	�����������������������������'����	�����	�����	�
��� :=�'�� ���� ��
� 
������� ���� �� �	�����	� ��� ?=�'�/� ,���

��	�������	� 	�� ���� ���)� #
	�'� ���� ����� �� ���������� 	�� ����
�''������ �	
� �� :=�'�� ������ ��
	��� ���� �	�� ��	���� ��� �	�#��� �
	��

�������� ��� ������� �
	��5�����
�� ���� ���� ����� ��� ���� ��
� �����
� �	�
�''�!� �	
���,
��������#�����	�5
��
� �	
�����������:=�'�� ��������� ����
�-����������
	������
	������
����
������	��''�!��	
�������
�	��������
�
�
���/�,���� 
��	�������	������� �	��
� �	
������
��	��5��
�����
�����
���!�����
���	�������	������	����������������,�5��	����
�����
�	��������������)	����#�����������
����
���
���������������������
�	��������	��������������
	����:=�'���'���������/�

?/� $��������
��	�� ���� ���)�#
	�'��#
���� ����� �������	�� ������ �	
� �!�������
���'�����
�����	����
���		�'���������	'��	������'������	���������
�
�!������� ��	���� ��� '�
������� 	� ���� "
	������ ���  �#�� ��
���� ��
���������/� �����
�� 	�� 5��
����� ��� ��
���!� ��
�� ����!� �����
�!���#���	�������'�
�������	�����"
	��������� �#����
���/�,�����
��	� �
���� ��
�� ���� ���� ��	
	�#���
�� �	
� ��	''�
�� ��� ��
������
�		������������������	�������������� �� �	��������������	��#��!���#�
��
	�#�	��/�

Page 5



�
�
�

�

�
��@���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��
�����������������������

�

�
,�������
�	�������,*���������������
���	�����)�#��������	
	�#��#��
��
�����
�	�������
��	�����	���	�
�#�������
����	������	��'�����
����������
��
��������	���������������������������������������!��������/�
�
4������#��'���������
�	�������,*���������������
��	�������	���	����
'	�������!���'
	�����
�8�����!������������	
	�#�����
�������	#����	/� ��

���

����	������������������,��)����
!��!�������'��#����������	��
��'
	��������������2
���	����	''�#�����/� ���#�������������	����'
	�������
�	����'��������	��������������
�'	����	�����
���	�����)�#�����#����
�������#����������������	��������/�
�
,���������������
�&����	'������������!����)�������#
	�'��	
�����
�'	
��
�������������������	������
!�������/� ���	������)�����!�����
��	�������	��
����������������	�����
��	������	'�#���'
��������������	
������	������	���)��
�	
��
�/�,�����	�������	���	������������	�������'�
��
�/� �����
�		)��	�
�
�#����)���
�'	
���	���������������	�
��/�
�
�����0��������
�

�(�����
���$���)	���+���	��������������������)	���+��+�	
,(��+��1��	�
��+�����"	���	���������	������
���	
���2�

�
�

	�� ��/� ���������������������

,���������������
� 	���#���
	����������
�'	
������-'���������������
�	�����	��	���������:�'
	'�
�����	����������	����)��
��#��"�������������
��
������!	����		����
���
�������/� �����	�
�'	
������������������		��#�
�	��
�������	����''
	�����	������		�����������
�#�
��#����������'��	����	��

���������������	'����	���(����	��	��/��,���������������
���������������
��	�	'��	�������������	������	��������������-�������!�����$�����
���#�����(	
)�#�*
	�'�����'
���	������)���������''	
��������(����	�
�	��������	'����	'��	/�

,��� ����	��"
	'�
�!����$��������#���������������������	����
����
������/� ���-'����������������������'�����������		������������	����'
	�����
�����		������������������'
	�����	���
�����	''	
�������/� �����	����������������
	''	
����!��	
�	�������'
	����	����	���''	
�������	
���	������������	������
�	����6��'
	'�
�!�������������������������	�����!�����	����'	�������!�
�������2�6���	#�
���
��������	�������		���������������/�

,���������������
� 	���#�����������	���������������������'	����	��!�
���)�#�������	�����������������	
�������	���#�	� �$���������������
���������������#�����������	����������/�

,���������������
�������
���

����	����������������������	�������!�
�����
��	������$��������#�����(	
)�#�*
	�'���������''	
����
����	���!������	�����������	
������	#���
���	���-����������������	������
�������!�'
	#
����#����������(����	��	���	'��	/�,���#
	�'����	�

��	#����������	
��������������������	��'
	����#��	��
�����	�������
���������#��		�������������
�������	
��	����
�������/�

Page 6



�
�
�

�

�
��>���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��
�����������������������

�

�����
��	�������������	��������'
	�'����	����#��8�����!�������	
������
�	����	
��	������������������'
	�����	�	������'	
���������������������
��'
	��#��������������������#��	���
�����	''	
���������	
������		����������/�
4��'
	����������'	
���������#������������	����������	���������	������	'�#�
�	���#��	
�
�������	�����'�
'	����������������)�!�'�
��	�������	����6��
�����	/�

�

�����0��������

32� �(��4-(���	���	���5�	)��	������	
�����)���,��)(�32627�	"��(��
��)	���+����	)���������(����))�	)���������)��+����1����	����������
����8�	)�+	�(��(����1�+���,������������(��-(���	���	���������
�	���"�����(��)�	)	������8�	)#���'�����#�1��,�����))�����	���	�
�(���))�	)�������
�(	���$��	���	)�
)���1�+���,����������9(	��	��
)����

72� �(�������	"���	)���$���������������,�#����:����	��
����	��9��(�
�(�������	��3;3��""����������(�� 	�	
,(��	����	�<�+���
�(	�������	�
)�	�����9��(���,	�����	���9��(��(����(�#��	9���		�+���
+��	�
���+���(�������(	9��������� ��	����
����	��(���	
���=��
)	������	������"	���(�������(	9������������	�+�����
����9��(���
�(��������������	��(���
+���
+�������$��
)	���(�����#��
:���
���,��>)��$<�	"��(���>�����,�����������
�(�	�(������#������(��
�����	"���	)���$���������������,�#�������#����������$�	��
��8���+���	�)�	������(���	
���=������������

?2� �(�� 	�	
,(��	����	��+���
�(	�������	��	��
����
�(��	�
#�����
����(�����#���))�	)�������	���"�����(�����#����,	�������
�����
)���,��)(�7�	"��(������	
��	�'�9(��(���+$��
��������	"�)��������
�����	"��
+����
������'�	���
��������	"��(��9(	������,�����	"���
��9������	"��(��8�����������

%2� ����(�����8������#�'��(���������
������	��(���	
���=��)	������	��

��������	
��	��7��+	8��+���))�	)��������	��	
���,�:���<�����

;2� �(����(����,(���	� 
$������)���+��
�������"������)	���+���	�"
����(��
)�	@����

�
�


�� ���������������� �.����������

,��� ������� �����
�  	���#� ��
	������ ���� 
�'	
�� ��� ��
�������� ����� ����
�#���/� �� �-'������ ����� ���� �	����6�� '
���

��� �''
	���� �	� ��
����#� ����
'
	����	� 	�� ��� ���	
������ �	���#� �� ���������� ���� �	� ������ ���	
������
�	����	��	����� 	�����
	������� �����/� ��������	����
� �����������#����
�	���� �� �������!��	�����	����
�����	�'��-����������	����#�����������
���
��	
��'
������	
������	������	��	����
�	���
���!��	�����#�������#����	�2�!�
�����'���������#���8��
�#�����	�����
	������	'����
)��/� ����'��������
�������#��� �	�2�!������'��������	�����'�����������
���������������� ��� ������
��
��	����������
����'�����������
�'�����	�����#	��
������������
���/�

Page 7



�
�
�

�

�
��C���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��
�����������������������

�

,��������
�����	��������'
	'	�����������������������#		����!��	����
�������

�'�!�����	��
����'����	�����#	��
�����	���������	����/�

�

�����0��������

32� �(�������	"���	)���$���������������,�#����:�����	��
����	��9��(�
�(�������	��3;3��""����<'�+���
�(	�������	�)
��(�����9���,���(���
�����	����������	�+���
���+��"	��
�������""	���+��(	
���,�:���
���	�������9��(���(��)���#�������������	
��9��(��������	��%2;�	"�
�(�����)	��<'��
+@�����	����	�����)�	���(���	���������	��)����"	���(��
�������)	��"	�	�	"�A3�#��	��2��

72� �(�� 	�	
,(��	����	���+���
�(	�������	���,	�����������	#)����
�
�(��	�
#���������(�����#����������$�	��������+���	��	��
���
�(�����������	�����,	�������+$��(�������	"���	)���$�����������
����,�#����
��������	
��	��3��+	8��

?2� �(�������	��3;3��""�����+���
�(	�������	�
����(����,(���	� 
$�
�����)���9(������������$��	�"
����(����B
�����	��	"��(��)�	)�������
)
��(�����
��������	
��	��3��+	8��

�

��� ���-����������C�����������������.�7D3;�
,���������������
���������*
���+��
	������
	����������
�'	
�����
�-'���������������$��	�������
���#!�:=�>��������'��������
���#!��	������
������-'�	
������������������''�!���������	
����	���������������������
'
	'	��������	����)�!��
����	�����	��������#��������
���
����
���
'
	�����	����'
	����	��'
	�	��	�������������������!���������������	�
���
�#���������������'
	����	�������#�����	�����	������	�����������
����
�/�
�
,���������������
���������*
���+��
	�����������������	������
'
	����������#�������'��������
������	�
����������
	��������	�������������

�'
�����#�#
���������/� ����#���#���������������������
���	��'
	������
�
������'���������	���	�����!�����-�
������������������������������
�������C===�����=�===�
������������������������
����
������	�����	�����/�
 ��
����
����������	����6���	���������	����	���������������������������

	��������������	���'����	
���������
���������������	�'��������#�	���
'
	'	����������������	
������)�!��
���<����	��������#����9���
���
����
���
'
	�����	��'
	����	�����������B������!/�,���������������
����	���#���#�����
��������
����
����
����#�'�	������
��	��-����#����������	�����
����
��
���
����#�����������	'�
������
���	��'
	����	�	���������	'����/�
����
����#�
�����
�������	�������	�����)�!/� ����������	�'���	�
��	
������
���)���	��������	�����	�����
��	
���
���
���	
)�
�
�����
����''	
����������
���#!������������	�'��9����	�����������������
�-������������������
�������������	���	�����������/�
�
,��������
�
��	#��������������������	
)�	����	���������	���������

���	�������	�	�����	������'�������������������������	����������#����������
����
������/�

Page 8



�
�
�

�

�
��1���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��
�����������������������

�

�
�����0��������
�
�(���	�#����������,$������(������	��)���+���))�	8��2�
�

����  ������������������������7D3;E3F�C���������������������� ���
7D3;�

,���������������
���������
	����������
�'	
���������'�����������
��	�
�����	����6����

�����������'	����	��	
�:=�>;�C�������	������	��	
�#�
�-�
���������������	����'�����
�:=�>/�,���
�'	
���	��
��������	����6��

���������'���������
����
!����#�����'	����	/�,���
�'	
�������������!�
)	����#���������
����	����������D>=�===���	�����:=�>;�C�	
�#�������#���
����
����������	���������	����
���/�

,���������������
�������
�'	
��������������	����'
	0���������
��'����	
�
����!��
���	������	�DCC�C==/� ������������������	������
�#��������#���
���#�������������������#		��	���	����	
������	����/�4���
���	��
��
���������
�'	
���������
��!���#���	�������
������������	������
	'�������
'
����	���
����	������������	��	�����������������		�!/��	����	��������
����	�������!��	���������������������!�E���	/�,���������������
�
�'	
����
�������
�'�
)�#���	�����������������!���	���'	����	/�$��	
�����������
�	��	
�#��	������)��'�����	��
������-���������)��������
���'��	��������#���
�-��!��
/�

,���������������
�����������#
��������	�����	�����
����
	�����������	
��!�
��	������	�
��������	��������#���'	����	�������'�
������
���������	����)�����
������,�����	
�����
���������������)�����������
���'������#������#����/�

�����0��������

�(���	�������	"��(�����)	������
���,��(��1�$�)�	@������8����������	��(��
7D3;E3F�+
�,��������(���>)���������8��$�	"����8�����9��(���+
�,���+��
�	���2�

�
�

���� ���������������������������������������������������������

,��� ������� �����
� &����	'���� ��� �����!� ��
	������ ���� 
�'	
�� ���
��
������������� �����#���/� ���-'��������������
� �����	����6���	�������	�
������� �	���� �''
	��� ���� ��	'��	� 	�� ������ ������#� �	����	�� �	� 
�����
�����������
�� �����
��� �	
� �������� ������ '
������� ������#� '��� ����#��
�������	�
��#�������������������	#��
����#/�

 ��
�'	
�������������#������)��	�������	�	��������������	�������
���������
�	����	���������
��)����������@�$�#�������F�5��	��
�:=�>/�,��������
������� �	����	�� ��
�� �-�
������ �
	�� �	���� �	����	�� '��������� �!� ����
���
��
��� 4��������	��+��
	������ ����������	����$���	
��!��	�	
����	
��
	�� ��#����	
!� ��
�����/� ��8������ �	
� ����
���	�� �
	�� �	�������� ��� ����

�'	
��#�	�����
�����������#���#����� �� ���� 
�'	
������� ���� 
��	�������	��
�	
���	'��	/� ���-'�������������	'��	�	������'
	'	�����	����	���	�����
�#�
��������	
��!��'��	���������������$�����(����
��$���:==C/�

,���������������
�
�'	
��������������������	�������	��������)����	��������

Page 9



�
�
�

�

�
��A���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��
�����������������������

�

�����''
	'
������	
��#�	�� ��	������	��	������&	#� 	���2	�
��#��	����	��
��	����	�� >/>/1� ��� >/A?�� ���� �
���/� ������� ��
�� ��)��� �	� ������� ������
�	
��#��	���	'�/� ���-'�����������������	�����
�������	
��#����##�������	
�
>/>/1���
��	����������:/�F����:/:=�	������
�'	
�/�5����������	�����
����������

��	��������	������������������	��	��#��	
��#�������	'����<�

G"
������	�� ����� ��� ��)�� �	� '
����� ���� �'
���� 	�� ������� ���)��� ���������
'�
����������	���
�'�
����������	����	�
�������
��������	#�/�"
		����������
���������	������
	�����������
#��!��
��������	
�'�
������H/�

,�����	�����
�������	
��#����##�������	
��	����	�>/A?���
��	����������:/?=�
���:/?��	������
�'	
�/�5��������	�����
����������
��	��������	�������������
�����	��	��#��	
��#�������	'����<�

G.	���

������������	����	�
��
������������
�����
�1�������
��	����	��H/�

4� �����#� �'� ���� ������� �����
� ����� ��� ���� ��'	
���� ����� ���� �	�����
���������������#����������
���	�������������
�������������	
	�#���������
��	'��	�	�� �������'� �	�������	����	���	�����	�
������ �	����
�#� ����� �����
��''���/�5����''
	���� �������'
	'	���� ����� �������!���	'�����	����	��
��
�� �������� �� �� 	��
�
���#� ������ �����
�� '	���!� ����� ���� 	�0������� 	��
���'���!�#������	����6��'	��������	
�����#��
���'�����/�

�

�����0��������

32� �(�� �	�����	��� ���� 	
�� ��� G�	��� �	�����	��� "	�� ���� 0�����,�
��������,� 7D3?=� )
+��(��� +$� �(�� �(�������� ������
��� 	"�
��8��	�#���������('���)��#+���7D3?�:�����))����>�%�"	��	��,����
���� �))����>� 6� "	�� )�	)	���<� +�� ��	)���� ��� �(�� �
�(	���$=��
�������,� �	�����	��� ��� ���)���� 	"� )��� 8���	��� ���� �(	)�� ����,�
�	#)���	�� ���#��� ��� �#������ +$� �(�� ��B
������ )�	)	����
�	�����	��2�

72� �(�� �	�����	��� ���� 	
�� ��� G����� �	��� �������� �	�����	��� ����
�
������� "	�� �	,�  ������,� ����+��(#����=� )
+��(��� +$� �(��
�(�������� ������
��� 	"� ��8��	�#����� ����('� *��
��$� 7D3%� :����
�))����>�%�"	��	��,���������))����>�&�"	��)�	)	���<'�+����	)����
����(���
�(	���$=�� �������,��	�����	���������)����	"��	,�+��������
9(	� ��B
���� �� ������� ��� �#������ +$� �(�� ��B
������ )�	)	����
�	�����	��2�

?2� �(�� �	�����	��� ���� 	
�� ��� G����� �	��� �������� �	�����	��� ����
�
�������"	������ 	�����,�����+��(#�����7D3?=�)
+��(���+$��(��
�(�������� ������
��� 	"� ��8��	�#����� ����('� �	8�#+��� 7D3?� :����
�))����>�%� "	��	��,���������))����>�H� "	��)�	)	���<�+����	)����
��� �(���
�(	���$=�� �������,��	�����	��� ��� ���)����	"� ����+	�����,�
����+��(#���������#������+$��(����B
������)�	)	�����	�����	��2�

%2� �(�� �	�����	��� ���� 	
�� ��� G����� �	��� �������� �	�����	��� ����
�
������� "	�� �	,�  	�����,� ����+��(#����=� )
+��(��� +$� �(��
�(�������� ������
��� 	"� ��8��	�#����� ����('� ���	+��� 3HH;� :����

Page 10



�
�
�

�

�
��F���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��
�����������������������

�

�))����>�%�"	��	��,���������))����>�3D�"	��)�	)	���<�+����	)����
����(���
�(	���$=�� �������,��	�����	���������)����	"��	,�+	�����,�
����+��(#����
���,��>������1����������#������+$��(����B
������
)�	)	�����	�����	��2�

;2� �(�� �	�����	��� ���� 	
�� ��� G��������	��� ���������	�����	��� "	��
�	#�� 	�����,�:�	,�<'����#�� 	�����,�����+��(#���������3HF?=�
)
+��(���+$������������	8�#+���7DD;��	�,�9��(��(��G�������
#	��� (	#�� +	�����,� �	�����	��� C� �)����� ���� ����"�����	�'� 3%���
���	+��� 7DDH=� :���� �))����>� ;� "	�� 	��,���� ���� �))����>� 33� "	��
)�	)	���<� +�� ��	)���� ��� �(�� �
�(	���$=�� �������,� �	�����	��� ���
���)���� 	"� �(�� (	#�� +	�����,� 	"� �	,�� ��� �#������ +$� �(��
��B
������ )�	)	���� �	�����	��� ���� ��+����=�� �
))	��� "	��
�	�����	���;2;26�����;2&2?2�

F2� �(���	�����	���+���))����"�	#��(��3���*��
��$�7D3F2��

62� ��� +�� �))�	8��� �(��� 	""������#�$� ��8����� "�	#� �(�� ������ 	"� �(����
�	�����	��� 	�� �� ����� +$� ����� +����'� )�	8����� �(�� )�	)����	�� ����
)�	8�� �(��� �(�� ��#�� 	�� (�,(��� ���#�� 9�"���� ���������� ����
��(��8���+$������������8���))�	��(2���

�
�

���� ��0�������������������������.�
,���������������
�&����	'������������!���
	����������
�'	
�����
�-'����������������	����6����

�����
�����
���#�'	���!������''
	�����!�
�	�����	�::����
��
!�:=�?�����������	��������	���$'
���:=�?/�$�
������	��
����'	���!������������
��)���!�	�����
����������������	����)����	�
�	����
������	�������	��������)����������	����$''���-�?�	�������
����
'	���!�����	�
��	������	��	�����������	'��	�	������
�������'	���!/�
�
,���������������
��-'���������������'	���!��������	�
�#������<�
�

��� ,����	����	�	����
�����
���
��
:�� ,�������
�	����
�����
���
��
?�� ,����!'���	��#		����	�����	���	
�	���
����	
������

�
,�������������	��������	�<��
�

��� "
���������	���
����	�	��������
������!���
�����
���#������������
��� ���������������������	')��'�
���������	��
��� �����������8�����!�	�������	����'����������������	������	��
��� +�	�
�#�����
�����������
��� "
	�	���8�����!���
)����
��� "
	�	����	
���	�������������	���)�#�

�
$�����������	���
���#��	����	���������'�
��������������������
��������	����
$�-��/�
�
�����!������������������
����������������'	���!�����	�������
������	����6��
����
���	�����''������	���	
���
�����
���#��	�����	
��	����	��	���''
	����
��������������������������������������
����/�4�������������	�����
���	����

Page 11



�
�
�

�

�
���=���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��
�����������������������

�


���
��''������	���	�����������#��	�������������	
���������������������	��
����#���	/�
�
,���������������
���	
���������
��������������'	���!��	�#����	�������
�''
	'
������	����	���	
���
�����
���#�����!��������	�����
�/�,�����
�	����	����
�����	��������������
�#��	��'�
�������#		���������������	���	
�
	���
����	
������/�,����	����	�����'�
�������#		����	�������)�'�����
�

�#���
�
�������	����
���������
�����
���#��������!�����	���	���������������
������
	���
��������������������	��	����
���������	�����
�����
	���������������
�����'
	�������	������	�����
�/�
�
,��������
�����	��������
�������'	���!��������	����'
	��������
��!��	�
�''�������	�������!'��	���������!�������)��!��	�����''
	���/�,���������#�
�	���������	�����������������''������	�	�����	����
���/�
�
�
�����0��������
�

32� �(���#���#������	��(���
������)	��$�+���	����

72� �(���	��
����	��"���+��1�����	""������	##�����+���	����

?2� �(�����"���#������)	��$�+���	����

%2� ��	
����+�����	##�������	���	)���(����8�����)	��$2�

�

����  ��������������� �������� ����
,���������������
���������*
���+��
	����
�'	
�������������'���#�
�''������	��	
�����"���������"�
)�'��!��
�������	���������������/� ���������
�	����)��	�������+��	��������	�*�	������
���
���	
�'
	�	��#�����'
	'	����
'��������������#��
�������#����������
���/�
�
,���������������
�������
�'	
��������������	�����������	����	����������
�������������#��''������	��	
�����(�
����	
��������#�	���������������	���	�
'
	��������������
�	����	����
���	
���	�	�������	����/� ����'��������
�������������	��	�����'�!������
�	����	�	�������	���������	������������	����
	���	�����!��������!��������/� ���-'�����������'�
��	�������''������	��	�����
 �
���#���	���
!�������
�!��-��!��
������	��������	�����!�	
#������	���	�
�	����	
��
�������'
	0��������!��	������)���	���������-'
����	��	�����
����
��
���	�#����!�������������	���A�&������
/�4�������	�����'
	0����������)��!�
�	�'	�������!���	�������		��/�
�

���� �� �������� �������������
�����
��
�'	
���������	��	��#�������	������������������)�����������
5��	��
������#�	���������<��
�

�� �������� ��� ����� ���������
������� �����
�
������

:=�5��	��
� �
���	��� ���'	���� 	��
��
������ ����� ��� I��!�
���
����

�����
� :=�5��	��
� .	�����	� 	�� ���
� ,���
 �
��� ��� �2�6��

Page 12



�
�
�

�

�
�������

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��
�����������������������

�


�'
���������� 	� ����
I���	
!�,
�����	��������

�����
� :?�5��	��
� (
����� ���	����	� ��

��'����	��E���	����������
�����
���	� �	
�
���#�#�&�
���	
�

� � (
����� ���	����	� ��

��'����	��E���	�$''
	����
	�� ���� 2������� "���
:=�>;�C�

�
�
�
�
�
�

��
�(���#���

�

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



 

   

$ehl4gcge Page 1 of 9 Last updated 26 November 2015 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 

Cabinet – 8th December 2015 

Council – 14th December 2015  

 

Housing Revenue Account New Build – Swindon Road Site 

 

Accountable member Councillor Peter Jeffries, Cabinet Member Housing 

Accountable officer Martin Stacy, Lead Commissioner – Housing Services 

Ward(s) affected St Pauls  

Key Decision Yes 

Executive summary 

 

In March 2015 Cabinet resolved that the Authority seek bids from 
contractors to build new homes on the redevelopment of the site at the 
corner of Swindon Road/Brunswick Street. Following a recent procurement 
exercise this report seeks approval to enter into a JCT Design and Build 
Contract with J Harper and Sons with Total Scheme Costs not to exceed 
£1,439,500.  The scheme will deliver ten new homes.   

Recommendations That Cabinet:-  

1. Subject to subsequent Council approval, authorise the 
Authority to accept the tender received from J Harper and Sons 
and enter into a JCT Design and Build Contract for the 
construction of ten new dwellings with Total Scheme Costs not 
to exceed £1,439,500.  

2. Delegate authority to the Head of Property and Asset 
Management, in consultation with the Borough Solicitor to:  

2.1. Conclude the JCT Design and Build contract with J Harper 
and             Sons.  

2.2 Take all necessary steps and undertake all necessary 
procedures, including entering into any legal agreements or 
other documentation as may be required to implement or 
facilitate the developments.  

3.  Authorise the Authority to charge Affordable Rents to all ten 
dwellings at 80% of Market Rents. 

Cabinet recommends that Council: 

4. Authorise the allocation of up to £1,439,500 for the construction 
of ten new dwellings.  
 

5. Note that the total scheme costs of £1,439,500 (broken down in 
further detail in exempt appendix 3) will be funded by circa 
£430k of RTB receipts with the balance funded by the most 
appropriate combination of the other funding streams noted 
within the report – this decision being delegated to the Section 

Agenda Item 5
Page 15



 

   

$ehl4gcge Page 2 of 9 Last updated 26 November 2015 

 

151 Officer in accordance with Financial Rules B7 and B8. 
 

6. Approves the Authority sourcing loan finance of up to £1.0m 
from the Public Works Loan Board to be used for the 
construction of ten new dwellings.  

 

  

 

Financial implications As outlined in the report and exempt appendix. 

The development of an HRA new build programme will require an ongoing 
review of resource availability to ensure the most effective and timely use 
of each funding stream. The choice of funding streams is delegated to the 
Section 151 Officer.  

Contact officer:    Paul Jones 

Paul.Jones@cheltenham.gov.uk 

01242 775154  

Legal implications The Authority has the power under Section 9 of the Housing Act 1985 to 
build new housing accommodation on land it owns for that purpose. This 
site is held for housing purposes. 

Due to the value of the JCT contract, the Authority’s constitution requires 
Cabinet approval to the Authority awarding the contract. 

As the Authority owns the land on which the dwellings are to be 
constructed, it will be the Authority entering into the contract. CBH will 
monitor the contract and the progress of the build on the Authority’s behalf 
with assistance from Employer’s Agents engaged by the Authority. 

Contact officer: Rose Gemmell,  Solicitor 

 rose.gemmell@tewkesbury.gov.uk  01684  272014 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no direct HR implications arising from this report. 

 

Key risks Please see risk assessment at Appendix 1 of this report.  

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

By increasing the provision of new affordable housing we will be 
supporting our key strategic objective of strengthening our communities   

Page 16



 

   

$ehl4gcge Page 3 of 9 Last updated 26 November 2015 

 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

The redevelopment of the site will improve the area as it currently consists 
of derelict commercial units.   

The quality of the proposed housing will have an impact on climate 
change.  All of the dwellings will achieve a minimum of Code for 
Sustainable Homes level 3 adopting a ‘fabric first’ approach to energy 
efficiency. The intention is that Solar Photovoltaic panels will be installed to 
the houses to contribute towards the electricity generation in the dwellings. 

Property/Asset 
Implications 

The redevelopment of the site will bring back into use current underutilised 
land and add to the affordable housing stock. 

The potential party wall awards have been built into the £1.439m Total 
Scheme Costs. 

Should this HRA site not be developed for affordable housing then the only 
other development the planners would support will be commercial for 
which there would be limited demand.  

Contact officer: David Roberts, Head of Property Services 
david.roberts@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264151 

Page 17



 

   

$ehl4gcge Page 4 of 9 Last updated 26 November 2015 

 

1. Background 

1.1 In March 2015, Cabinet was provided with an update on the pipeline development programme for 
new build housing. Since then CBH has continued to work with Council Officers via the Joint 
Programme Group (JPG) to progress suitable sites for new build development within the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA). The next tranche of dwellings will be owned by CBC rather than CBH to 
ensure Right to Buy (RTB) receipts are utilised, by their due date, to part fund the project.   

1.2 The redevelopment of the site at Swindon Road resulted from a comprehensive survey of all CBC 
owned assets which considered their current use together with site redevelopment potential. 

1.3 The site consists of a former car mechanics garage the lease of which has expired and the tenant 
has vacated the property.  

1.4 CBH continues to progress a number of other sites which includes the redevelopment of 5 further 
garage sites and the regeneration of Cakebridge Place/Whaddon Road.  In total these 
developments are expected to provide circa 26 new affordable dwellings.  

2. Scheme Details 
 
2.1 The Swindon Road scheme will provide 10 homes comprising of a range of house types as 

follows to meet local housing need: 5 x 1 bed 2 person flats; 3 x 2 bed 3 person flats and 2 x 2 
bed 4 person semi-detached dwellings.  

The site is in CBC’s ownership and there is no acquisition cost. 

2.2 Planning permission was granted for the redevelopment of the former commercial site on 16th July 
2015.   

2.3 Due to the proximity of the proposed new dwellings in relation to existing housing the Party Wall 
Act will apply to a number of adjoining properties. A Party Wall Surveyor has been appointed to 
ascertain the dwellings affected, serve the relevant Notices and negotiate Awards where 
necessary.  

3. The Case for Redevelopment 
3.1 One of the 3 key aims in the approved 30 year HRA business plan is to build new affordable 

homes in the Cheltenham area.  This development proposal is important in meeting this aim. 

3.2 The benefits of proceeding with this development include: 

• it aligns with CBC’s housing strategy by helping to provide for current housing needs; 

• it ensures the redevelopment of underutilised land within the HRA; 

• it provides ten high quality homes; and  

• it will further strengthen the HRA through positive cashflows from Year 1 and a significant 
return on investment over 40 years (a present value contribution in excess of £0.4m assuming 
funding via £430k of RTB receipts, £700k of loan and £310k of HRA new build reserves).   
It should be noted that the present value contribution may change depending on the final 
funding structure. 

4. Alternative Uses of RTB Receipts 
4.1 Following the re-invigoration of the RTB policy in 2012, the Government introduced complex rules 

on how the proceeds from sales are distributed and used. The Council has signed a retention 
contract (in common with most local authorities) which allows a significant proportion of such 
receipts to be kept by the authority on the proviso they are used to finance new build expenditure 
(at a ratio of 30% of eligible expenditure) within 3 years of receipt.  

4.2 Right to Buy sales in Cheltenham since April 2012 have generated a total of £1.716m of retention 
receipts as at 30 September 2015.  The receipts are accrued on a quarter by quarter basis and 
the authority is required to use them within 3 years of the quarter in which they were realised. This 
would require total expenditure of £5.720m on new affordable housing by 30 September 2018 
and the expenditure will also have to meet the phasing of the receipts.  If the receipts are not 

Page 18



 

   

$ehl4gcge Page 5 of 9 Last updated 26 November 2015 

 

used by the due date the Council is required to pay them over to Government with interest. 

4.3 The receipts can only be used to fund “additional” affordable rented housing. These new homes 
can be new build council homes, newly acquired council homes (existing homes bought on the 
open market but not those already owned by a registered provider), or social housing provided 
through local authority grant to registered providers (but not one controlled by the authority i.e. not 
CBH).  While it is the Government’s intention to encourage an increase in the supply of new 
housing (new build always being the favoured option) the receipts can be used to buy existing 
properties for conversion into affordable rent. 

4.4 The 3 options noted above for use of RTB receipts have been considered in proposing this 
redevelopment.  The considerations, relating to the 3 options, are set out below: 

4.4.1 Council officers have been working with CBH to identify new build schemes which will satisfy the 
criteria for retaining and using RTB receipts and meet current housing need. The scheme brought 
forward for approval in this report is one of a number currently under appraisal. Building new 
homes, in line with this scheme, provides the greatest financial contribution to the HRA of each of 
the 3 options for using RTB receipts set out above. 

4.4.2 Utilising the same level of funds, and RTB receipts, properties could be purchased from the open 
market and made available for affordable rent.  This option could also provide additional council 
properties in line with housing need.  However, full market price would need to be paid for stock 
that would be of a lower standard than this scheme provides.  Depending on the age, price and 
availability of property purchased this could also result in fewer homes being provided and the 
financial contribution to the HRA would be lower than option 1 above. 

4.4.3 Granting the RTB receipts to an independent registered provider could provide new affordable 
rent properties in Cheltenham however there is no certainty that these will deliver additionality to 
existing development plans.  In addition there would be no financial contribution to the HRA. 

4.5 Further to the 3 options for using RTB receipts above, the possibility of selling the site has been 
considered.  An independent valuation of the site has been commissioned based on affordable 
housing development.  This independent report shows that no additional value can be gained by 
selling this site.  Therefore the recommended approach is to redevelop this site within the HRA. 

5. Other Funding Available for New Build 
5.1 In addition to RTB receipts new build expenditure in the HRA can be funded from the following 

sources:- 

5.1.1 External borrowing financed by the HRA – the level of borrowing was restricted by Government as 
part of the self- financing settlement in 2012, the “debt cap” for Cheltenham being set at 
£52.862m. Current HRA debt totals £44.75m, leaving £8.112m available to finance new 
expenditure. 

5.1.2 Capital Receipts from HRA asset disposals not arising from RTB. These receipts are exempt from 
pooling regulations and can be used to finance any capital expenditure without time restraint or 
the conditions related to use of retention receipts as described above. The sum available at 31st 
March 2015 was £532,000.  This is being increased by proceeds from the disposal of the St Pauls 
Phase 2 site in the current year (approximately £1.4m in total) and proceeds from the sale of 
three additional properties (approximately £0.4m), having been approved by Cabinet for market 
disposal. 

5.1.3 Revenue contributions from the HRA.  The Council has previously resolved to transfer £2m from 
HRA reserves to an earmarked reserve for new build development.  After using a proportion of 
the reserve to fund preliminary costs in 2014/15, the balance remaining at 31st March 2015 was 
£1.903m.  This is currently being used to finance new build expenditure in 2015/16 prior to a final 
funding decision by the Section 151 Officer. 

5.1.4 The Council can also consider funding the delivery of affordable housing schemes through the 
use of commuted sums received from developers.  

5.2 The total scheme costs of £1.439m (broken down in further detail in exempt appendix 3) will be 
funded by circa £430k of RTB receipts with the balance funded by the most appropriate 

Page 19



 

   

$ehl4gcge Page 6 of 9 Last updated 26 November 2015 

 

combination of the other funding streams noted above – this decision being delegated to the 
Section 151 Officer. 

 

6. Consultation and feedback 
6.1 These proposals have been developed through consultation with key stakeholders including Ward 

Councillors. 

6.2 Local residents surrounding the site were written to confirming the intention to redevelop to 
provide new affordable housing. Prior to the formal submission of the planning application two 
information sessions were arranged at a local facility to give residents and local stakeholders the 
opportunity to review the proposals.  

6.3  Pre-application planning advice was sought and the scheme has been amended to incorporate 
comments from the Planning Department. The proposals submitted to the Planning Department 
reflect the feedback received from the information sessions, CBC Planning department and CBC 
and CBH staff members.  

6.4 CBC Councillors have been consulted on the proposals via the Asset Management Working 
Group.   

6.5 Prior to the commencement of construction works, all affected residents will be written to and a 
further drop in session will be arranged, to include meeting the contractor to unveil the intended 
site traffic plan etc. 

7. Tender Validation 
The report on tender from the project appointed Employers Agent and Quantity Surveyor, PMP, 
confirms that the tender from J Harper and Sons is competitive in the current market and 
represents value for money for the size and scope of the works proposed. Please see exempt 
Appendix 2.  

8. Indicative Programme 

• Planning achieved: 16th July 2015   

• Tenders returned: 16th October 2015  

• Required approvals: Cabinet (8th December) and Council (15th December)  

• Contract start date: Pending the outcome of Cabinet and Council approval the intention 
is to award the contract to J Harper and Sons to follow.   

• Start on site: Assuming a 12 week lead in time the likely start on site date will be March 
2016.   

• Practical Completion: Anticipated January 2017.  

9. Performance monitoring and review 
10.1 JPG will continue to oversee the delivery of the forward programme of housing development. An 

Operational Group has been created consisting of key Officers from CBH and CBC to deliver day-
to-day management and to provide JPG with performance monitoring and reporting data. 

10.2 The performance of the contractor will be monitored informally each week at regular site visits and 
formally each month at the monthly site meetings to ensure compliance with the contractual 
obligations of the JCT Design and Build contract.  

10.3 Close financial monitoring of the scheme will continue with costs monitored on a monthly basis to 
ensure budgets are not exceeded. Should any issues be encountered these will be discussed to 
ensure appropriate action is agreed.  

10. Forward Actions 
Following approval of the recommendations contained herein, CBH to progress completion of the 
overall legal documentation and CBC enter into the Build Contract.  

 

Page 20



 

   

$ehl4gcge Page 7 of 9 Last updated 26 November 2015 

 

 

Report authors Contact officers:   

Alison Salter, CBH Development Project Manager 
Alison.Salter@cheltborohomes.org/ 01242 774612 

Martin Stacy, Lead Commissioner for Housing Services CBC  
Martin.Stacy@cheltenham.gov.uk/ 01242 775214 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 

2. Site location plan 

3. Report on Tender from PMP (confidential)  

4. Financial Assessment (confidential)  

Background information Cabinet Report 17th March 2015 

 

Page 21



 

   

Cabinet report for 8
th
 December 2015 Page 8 of 9 Last updated 26 November 2015 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 Risk Assessment                 Appendix 1  

 
The risk Original risk score 

(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 

ref. 

Risk description Risk 

Owner 

Date raised Impact 

1-5 

Likeli- 

hood 

1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 

officer 

Transferred to 

risk register 

 If the capital receipts 
held from RTB sales 
under the retention 
agreement with DCLG 
are not used within 3 
years of receipt they are 
repayable with interest 
to the Government 

Pat 
Pratley 

December 
2013 

3 2 6 Reduce CBC and CBH to work 
closely via JPG to monitor 
the programme to enable 
construction on the first sites 
to commence in the Autumn 
2015; Acquire properties off 
the open market to utilise 
RTB receipts as approved by 
Cabinet November 2015.   
 

March 
2016  

Martin 
Stacy 

 

 If the contractor and/or 
its sub-contractors 
become insolvent or 
otherwise cease to 
trade, then this will 
adversely impact on the 
delivery of the 
programme  

Pat 
Pratley 

June 2015 3 3 9 Reduce Effective contract 
management; inclusion of 
retention monies in contract; 
include Liquidated and 
Ascertained damages within 
the contract in the case of 
delays to the programme; 
ongoing dialogue with the 
contractor to monitor labour 
and resources  

January 
2017  

Martin 
Stacy  

 

 If significant adverse 
ground conditions and 
site contamination is 
identified, then this will 
impact on the delivery 
of the programme  

Pat 
Pratley 

April 2015 3 4 12 Reduce 
and/or 
transfer 
to a 3

rd
 

party 

A Site investigation has been 
completed and issued to the 
contractor, assume asbestos 
containing materials will be 
found in the existing 
buildings. 
 
If additional unknowns are 
identified which require 
further specialist intervention, 
issue the contractor with the 
report findings and engage in 

March 
2016 

Martin 
Stacy  

 

P
age 22



 

   

Cabinet report for 8
th
 December 2015 Page 9 of 9 Last updated 26 November 2015 

 

 

 

detailed discussions with the 
specialist as to how to 
manage the risk. Include a 
contingency in the scheme 
costs.  
 

 The logistics of the site 
(restricted access into 
the site and limited 
capacity on site) pose 
issues for construction 
traffic and have an 
adverse impact on 
construction and 
adjoining residents.  

Pat 
Pratley 

September 
2015 

3 4 12 Transfer 
to 3

rd
 

party 

Contractor was issued with 
site details at tender stage 
and visited the site numerous 
times. The Contractor is to 
issue a pre construction 
health and safety plan prior 
to commencing works which 
will address their approach to 
the site access constraints 

From 
March 
2016 

Martin 
Stacy 

 

 The cost of services 
connections is in 
excess of the 
provisional sums 
allowed. Issues with the 
timing as to when the 
services are connected 
are encountered 
causing a delay to the 
programme.  

Pat 
Pratley 

September 
2015 

3 3 9 Transfer 
to 3

rd
 

party 

Include a contingency to 
account for additional costs 
associated with services 
connections. Engage with the 
contractor following approval 
to enter into contract to 
enable critical pre 
construction work to 
commence and services 
applications.  

From 
March 
2016 

Martin 
Stacy  

 

Explanatory notes 

Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 

Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  

(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 

Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 

 
  

P
age 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



1
2

1
5

1

56

48

40

29

28

1

2
3

14

8

3
b

8

2

53

6
5

5
8

47

1
0

2
0

2
8

a2
8

BM 57.14m

BM 58.97m

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
O

U
T

H

S
T

 P
A

U
L
'S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 N
O

R
T

H

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

 S
T

R
E

E
T

SWINDON ROAD

S
T

 P
A

U
L
'S

 L
A

N
E

C
lu

b

Warehouse

E
l

Lodge

Depot

PH

Works

Francis Close Hall

N
O

R
M

A
L
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

S
u
b

S
ta

1
3

18
20

1
9

5

7

1
2

2
6

 R
U

T
L
A

N
D

 C
O

U
R

T

1

3

4

2
2 2

3

S
t G

e
o
rg

e
's

1
-8

DRAWING NO REV

Only figured dimensions to be 

used for construction.
Check all dimensions on site.

3834/F/01

Brunswick Street
Cheltenham

Cheltenham Borough
Homes

Site Location Plan

SH SH

1:500@A3 August 2014

site boundary

key

N

P
age 25



P
age 26

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 27By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



   

$vu4bpkfd Page 1 of 7 Last updated 24 November 2015 

 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 

Cabinet – 8th December 2015 

Council – 14th December 2015 

Treasury Mid-Term Report 2015/16 

 

Accountable member Finance & Community Development , John Rawson 

Accountable officer Section 151 Officer, Paul Jones 

Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Economy & Business Improvement 

Ward(s) affected None 

Key Decision Yes 

Executive summary  The Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16 has been determined by 
the adoption of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 
(CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2009 (revised 2011), 
which includes the requirement for determining a treasury strategy on the 
likely financing and investment activity for the forthcoming financial year. 
The Code also recommends that members are informed of Treasury 
Management activities at least twice a year. This report therefore ensures 
this authority has adopted the code and complies with its requirements.   

 

Consultation The Treasury Management Panel have considered this report on 23rd 
November 2015. 

Recommendations Treasury Management Panel approves the following recommendation 
to Cabinet/Council:   

1. Note the contents of the summary report of the treasury 
management activity during the first six months of 2015/16.  

 

 

Financial implications All financial implications are detailed throughout the report 

Contact officer: Andrew Sherbourne, 
andrew.sherbourne@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264337 

Legal implications None specific arising from the report recommendations. 

Contact officer: Peter Lewis,                      
peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01242 264216 

Agenda Item 6
Page 57



   

$vu4bpkfd Page 2 of 7 Last updated 24 November 2015 

 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

No direct HR implications arising from this report 

Contact officer:  Julie McCarthy,                                        
julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk.  01242 264355 

Key risks see appendix 2 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

None 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None  

 

1. Background 
 

1.1 The Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16 has been developed by the adoption of the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management 2009 (revised 2011), which includes the requirement for determining a treasury 
strategy on the likely financing and investment activity for the forthcoming financial year. The Code 
also recommends that members are informed of Treasury Management activities at least twice a 
year. This report therefore ensures this authority has adopted the code and complies with its 
requirements, one of which is the provision of a Mid-year report to Members.   

2. Economic update for the first six months 

2.1 The following key points have been provided by the councils Treasury Advisors, Capita Treasury 
Solutions. 

2.2 UK GDP growth rates in 2013 of 2.2% and 2.9% in 2014 were the strongest growth rates of any G7 
country; the 2014 growth rate was also the strongest UK rate since 2006 and the 2015 growth rate 
is likely to be a leading rate in the G7 again, possibly being equal to that of the US. However, 
quarter 1 of 2015 was weak at +0.4% (+2.9% y/y) though there was a rebound in quarter 2 to 
+0.7% (+2.4% y/y). Growth is expected to weaken to about +0.5% in quarter 3 as the economy 
faces headwinds for exporters from the appreciation of Sterling against the Euro and weak growth 
in the EU, China and emerging markets, plus the dampening effect of the Government’s continuing 
austerity programme, although the pace of reductions was eased in the May Budget. Despite these 
headwinds, the Bank of England August Inflation Report had included a forecast for growth to 
remain around 2.4 – 2.8% over the next three years, driven mainly by strong consumer demand as 
the squeeze on the disposable incomes of consumers has been reversed by a recovery in wage 
inflation at the same time that CPI inflation has fallen to, or near to, zero over the last quarter.  
Investment expenditure is also expected to support growth. However, since the report was issued, 
the Purchasing Manager’s Index, (PMI), for services on 5 October would indicate a further decline 
in the growth rate to only +0.3% in Q4, which would be the lowest rate since the end of 2012.  In 
addition, worldwide economic statistics and UK consumer and business confidence have distinctly 
weakened so it would therefore not be a surprise if the next Inflation Report in November were to 
cut those forecasts in August. 

2.3   The August Bank of England Inflation Report forecast was notably subdued in respect of inflation 
which was forecast to barely get back up to the 2% target within the 2-3 year time horizon. 
However, with the price of oil taking a fresh downward direction and Iran expected to soon re-join 
the world oil market after the impending lifting of sanctions, there could be several more months of 

Page 58



   

$vu4bpkfd Page 3 of 7 Last updated 24 November 2015 

 

low inflation still to come, especially as world commodity prices have generally been depressed by 
the Chinese economic downturn.   

2.4   There are therefore considerable risks around whether inflation will rise in the near future as 
strongly as had previously been expected; this will make it more difficult for the central banks of 
both the US and the UK to raise rates as soon as was being forecast until recently, especially 
given the recent major concerns around the slowdown in Chinese growth, the knock on impact on 
the earnings of emerging countries from falling oil and commodity prices, and the volatility we 
have seen in equity and bond markets in 2015 so far, which could potentially spill over to impact 
the real economies rather than just financial markets.   

 

3. Portfolio position 1/4/2015 to 30/9/2015 

 Movements in the Council’s borrowing during the first six months of 2015/16 financial year can be 
seen in the table below.  Long term loans are deemed to be those repayable over a period of more 
than one year. 

               
Source of 

Loan 
 

Temporary 
Borrowing 

Balance at 
1 April 2015 

£ 

Raised 
during 

Apr-Sept 
£ 

Repaid 
during 

Apr-Sept 
£ 

Balance at 
30 Sept 
2015 
£ 

 
 - Local 
Authorities 
 
Temporary 
Investment 

 
               

0 

 
21,000 

 
 

13,020,000 
 
 

0 
 
  

 
13,020,000 

 
 

0  

 
  

    0 
 
 

 21,000    
        

Total Short 
Term 
Borrowing 

 
21,000 

 
13,020,000 

 
13,020,000 

 
21,000 

Long Term 
Borrowing 

               

    

 
  - Public  
Works Loan 
 Board 
 
  - Market    
Loans 

 
 
  43,030,000 
 
 
  15,900,000 
 

 

 
                   

    6,950,000 
      

     
                 0 

 
         

256,270      
 
 
                   0 

 
     

49,723,730   
  
 

15,900,000 

Long Term 
Borrowing 

 
  58,930,000  6,950,000

        
256,270    

   
65,623,730 

Total 
External 
Borrowing 

 
 
  58,951,000 

 
 
19,970,000  

 
     
   13,276,270 

 
    

65,644,730 

 

3.1 In February 2015 the Council’s borrowing costs for 2015/16 was set to be £2,067,400. This is now 
forecast to come in at £2,169,000 for the year, an increase of £101,600.  The increase is due to an 
additional £4.75m borrowed from the PWLB to finance the purchase of Delta Place. This has 
increased borrowing costs by a further £83,200 and an additional £18,400 is expected to be repaid 
back to the HRA for reserves and balances held within the council investment balances. These 
balances are expected to come in higher than what was estimated in February 2015. 

Page 59



   

$vu4bpkfd Page 4 of 7 Last updated 24 November 2015 

 

3.2 The PWLB remains an attractive source of borrowing for the Council as it offers flexibility and 
control. Due to downward moves in gilt yields in the first quarter, this resulted in PWLB rates falling 
across all maturities due to fear around the slowdown in China and Japan.  In May 2015 a loan of 
£2.2m was taken out with the PWLB for 30 years at a rate of 3.08% on behalf of Cheltenham 
Borough Homes. The loan is cost neutral for the Council as Cheltenham Borough Homes are 
repaying the Council in line with the repayment schedule. 

3.3    As highlighted in paragraph 3.1 the Council purchased Delta Place in June 2015 and went and 
borrowed £4.75m from the PWLB.  

        The loans drawn were:   
 

Lender Principal Type Interest    Rate Maturity 

PWLB £1.5m Fixed interest rate 2.80% 
 

15 years 
 

PWLB £1.75m Fixed interest rate 3.07% 20 years 

PWLB £1.5m Fixed interest rate 2.16% 10 years 

 

 4. Investments                        

            The DCLG’s Guidance on Local Government Investments in England gives priority to security and 
liquidity and the Council’s aim is to achieve a yield commensurate with these principles.  

             Security of capital remained the Council’s main investment objective. This was maintained by 
following the Council’s counterparty policy as set out in its Treasury Management Strategy for 
2015/16 approved by Council on the 13th February 2015. This restricted new investments to the 
following  

 

Investment Max Sum per 
institution/group 

Maximum period 

Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility*  
(DMADF) 

• this facility is at present available for 
investments up to 6 months 

 

 
 
   UNLIMITED 

 
 
6 months  

UK Government Gilts       £2m 2 years 
 

UK Government Treasury Bills UNLIMITED 1 year 
 

Term deposits with the UK government or with UK 
local authorities (i.e. local authorities as defined under 

Section 23 of the 2003 Act) with maturities up to 1 year 
 

 
 
      £7m 

 
 
2 years 

Term deposits with credit-rated deposit takers 
(banks and building societies), including callable 
deposits, with maturities up to 1 year (UK & Non-UK) 

 
 
      £7m 

 
 
1 year 

Money Market Funds with UK/Ireland/Luxembourg 
domiciled 

      £1m 1 year 

Page 60



   

$vu4bpkfd Page 5 of 7 Last updated 24 November 2015 

 

Corporate Bonds held in a broker’s nominee 
account (King & Shaxson Ltd) 

 
      £2m 

 
2 years to maturity 

 T-Bills  issued by the DMO (Government)     UNLIMITED 1 year 

Certificates of deposit (CD’s) issued by banks and 
building societies covered by UK Government  
(explicit) guarantee 

      
       £7m 

 
2 years 

 
             This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Capita.  This service employs a 

sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit ratings from the three main credit rating agencies - 
Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s.  The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented 
with the following overlays:  

• Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

• CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

• Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries. 

          

4.1    It is a very difficult investment market in terms of earning the level of interest rates commonly seen 
in previous decades as rates are very low and in line with the 0.50% Bank Rate.  As part of the 
2015/16 Treasury Management Strategy investments have only been those which met the lending 
criteria set, and up to a maximum period of one year. Treasury officers have kept to this strategy 
for the period reported on. Given this risk environment, investment returns are likely to remain low. 

4.2 Investments - Movements in the Council’s investment portfolio during the first six months of 
2015/16 can be seen in the table below. 

       Source of Loan 
 

Short term Lending 

      Balance at 
        1 April 
          2015 

£ 

Raised  
during 
Apr-Sept 

                  £ 

          Repaid  
          during 
        Apr-Sept 

  £ 

         Balance at 
30 Sept  
  2015 
     £ 

Bank – Term 
Deposit 

 
Building 

Societies 
  

Call A/C’s 
 

Local 
Authorities 

 
 

Glos Airport 
Ltd 

 
 

Money Market 
Funds 

 
Bonds 

9,000,000 
 
 

3,000,000 
 
 

6,590,000 
 
 

0 
 
 
 

210,000 
 
 
 

2,000,000 
 

0 

7,600,000 
 
 

6,300,000 
 
 

69,200,000 
 
 

1,000,000 
 
 
 

0 
 
 
 

2,000,000 
 

2,610,662 
 

12,900,000 
 
 

5,000,000 
 
 

69,910,000 
 
 

0 
 
 
 

 35,000 
 
 
  

2,000,000 
 

0 
 

3,700,000 
 
 

4,300,000 
 
 

5,880,000 
 
 

1,000,000 

  

175,000  

 

2,000,000                 

2,610,662                        

Total Short  
Term Lending 

 
20,800,000 

 
88,710,662 

 
89,845,000 

 
19,665,662 

 
 

Page 61



   

$vu4bpkfd Page 6 of 7 Last updated 24 November 2015 

 

 
Icelandic 
Banks in 
administration 

 
        Balance at 

1 April 
  2015 
     £ 

 
Raised  
during 

           Apr-Sept 
                 £ 

 
          Repaid  
           during 
          the year 

   £ 

    
         Balance at 

   30 Sept 
   2015 
    £ 

- Kaupthing 
Singer &                  
Friedlander 

 
- Glitnir 

    
 

 
 

522,486 
 

572,400 
 
 

 
 

0 
 

0 
 
 

 
 

0 
 

0 
 
 

 
 

522,486 
 

572,400 
 
 

Total 
Icelandic 
Banks 

 
 

1,094,886 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

1,094,886 

Total External 
Investments 

 
21,894,886 

 
88,710,662 

 
89,845,000 

 
20,760,548 

 

4.3 In February 2015 the Council’s Investment income for 2015/16 was budgeted to be £60,000. The 
average cash balances representing the council’s reserves and working balances, was £16.88m 
during the period this report covers. The Council anticipates an investment outturn of £123,200 at a 
rate of 0.70% for this financial year as treasury officers have been able to gain some good rates 
with the Bonds and Certificate of Deposits purchased. Security of capital has remained the 
Council’s main investment objective. This has been maintained by following the Council’s 
counterparty policy as set out in its Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2015/16.  

 

4.4 Included within the investments of £20.761m as at 30th September 2015, the Council has £1.095m 
deposited in the collapsed Icelandic banks.  

 

4.5 Glitnir’s Winding–up-Board made a distribution to priority creditors back in March 2012, which 
amounted to 78p in the pound. The remaining balance is held in an escrow account in Iceland. The 
Central Bank of Iceland is controlling the movement of Icelandic Krona’s, so the Council has been 
unable to gain access to these funds. The Council is working with the Local Government 
Association (LGA) and Bevan Brittan (appointed solicitors) to recover the remaining amount.  

 

4.6    Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander administrators have made distributions of 82.5p in the pound to 
date. Administrators currently estimate a total return of 85p-86.5p in the pound. No future date for 
the next dividend payment has been set yet. 

 

 

 5. Prudential Indicators 

 5.1 During the financial year to date the Council has operated within the treasury limits and       
Prudential Indicators set out in the Council’s Treasury Policy Statement and Annual Treasury 
Strategy Statement. Appendix 1 attached highlights the major indicators. 

 

 

Page 62



   

$vu4bpkfd Page 7 of 7 Last updated 24 November 2015 

 

  6.      Outlook 

 

6.1    Capita Asset Services undertook its last review of interest rate forecasts on 11 August shortly after 
the quarterly Bank of England Inflation Report. Later in August, fears around the slowdown in 
China and Japan caused major volatility in equities and bonds and sparked a flight from equities 
into safe havens like gilts and so caused PWLB rates to fall below the above forecasts for quarter 4 
2015.  However, there is much volatility in rates as news ebbs and flows in negative or positive 
ways and news in September in respect of Volkswagen, and other corporates, has compounded 
downward pressure on equity prices. This latest forecast includes a first increase in Bank Rate in 
quarter 2 of 2016.  

         Despite market turbulence since late August causing a sharp downturn in PWLB rates, the overall 
trend in the longer term will be for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise when economic recovery is 
firmly established accompanied by rising inflation and consequent increases in Bank Rate, and the 
eventual unwinding of QE. Increasing investor confidence in eventual world economic recovery is 
also likely to compound this effect as recovery will encourage investors to switch from bonds to      
equities.   

         The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is currently evenly balanced. Only time 
will tell just how long this current period of strong economic growth will last; it also remains 
exposed to vulnerabilities in a number of key areas. 

  

7.     Performance management  

7.1    In compliance with the requirements of the Treasury Management CIPFA Code of Practice this  
report provides members with a summary report of the treasury management activity during the 
first six months of 2015/16. None of the Prudential Indicators have been breached and a prudent 
approach has been taken in relation to investment activity with priority being given to security and 
liquidity over yield. 

Report author Contact officer: Andrew Sherbourne,  
andrew.sherbourne@cheltenham.gov.uk      

01242 264337 

Appendices Prudential Indicators Appendix 1 

Risk Appendix 2 

Background information Treasury Management Strategy, Council 13th February 2015 

 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                                                                           Appendix 1
  

 The Council’s Capital Position (Prudential Indicators) 

This part of the report is structured to update: 

• The Council’s capital expenditure plans; 

• How these plans are being financed; 

• The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the prudential indicators  and the underlying 
need to borrow; and 

• Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity. 

Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure 

This table shows the revised estimates for capital expenditure and the changes since the capital programme was 
agreed at the Budget.  

 

 

 

 

Changes to the Financing of the Capital Programme   

The table below draws together the main strategy elements of the capital expenditure plans (above), highlighting 
the original supported and unsupported elements of the capital programme, and the expected financing 
arrangements of this capital expenditure.  The borrowing element of the table increases the underlying 
indebtedness of the Council by way of the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), although this will be reduced in 
part by revenue charges for the repayment of debt (the Minimum Revenue Provision).  This direct borrowing need 
may also be supplemented by maturing debt and other treasury requirements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Changes to the Prudential Indicators for the Capital Financing Requirement, External Debt and 
the Operational Boundary 

The table shows the CFR, which is the underlying external need to incur borrowing for a capital purpose.  It also 
shows the expected debt position over the period. This is termed the Operational Boundary. 

 

Prudential Indicator – Capital Financing Requirement 

We are on target to achieve the revised forecast Capital Financing Requirement  

 

 

Capital Expenditure by 
Service 

2015/16 
Original 
Estimate 

 
£m 

Current 
Position 

As at 30
th

 Sept 
2015 
£m 

2015/16 
Revised 
Estimate 

 
£m 

General Fund          2.309        14.552      23.838 

HRA          6.688          2.748        6.780 

Total          8.997        17.300      30.618 

Capital Expenditure 2015/16 
Original 
Estimate 

 
£m 

2015/165 
Revised 
Estimate 

 
£m 

Financed by:   

Capital receipts              847           7.809 

Capital grants              306              660 

Capital reserves           6.184            5.912 

Third Party Contribution                50              893 

Revenue              804              975 

Total financing           8.191         16.249 

Borrowing need              806         14.369 

Page 65



                                                                                                                                                                           Appendix 1 

Prudential Indicator – External Debt / the Operational Boundary 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Limits to Borrowing Activity 

The first key control over the treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure that over the medium term, net 
borrowing (borrowings less investments) will only be for a capital purpose.  Gross external borrowing should not, 
except in the short term, exceed the total of CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 
2015/16 and next two financial years.  This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years.  The 
Council has approved a policy for borrowing in advance of need which will be adhered to if this proves prudent.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Section 151 Officer reports that no difficulties are envisaged for the current or future years in complying with 
this prudential indicator.   

A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing.  This is the Authorised Limit which represents 
the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, and needs to be set and revised by Members.  It reflects the level of 
borrowing which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.  It 
is the expected maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected movements. This is the statutory 
limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003.  

 

 2015/16 
Original 
Estimate 

 
£m 

Current Position 
As at 30

th
 Sept 

2015 
 

£m 

2015/16 
Revised 
Estimate 

 
£m 

Prudential Indicator – Capital Financing Requirement 

CFR – non housing       38.470        25.975      51.950 

CFR – housing       35.400        17.700      35.400 

Total CFR       73.870        43.675      87.350 

    

    

Prudential Indicator – External Debt / the Operational Boundary 

Borrowing     106.600      106.600    106.600 

Other long term liabilities*           -            -          - 

Total debt  31 March     106.600      106.6000    106.600 

 2015/16 
Original 
Estimate 

 
£m 

Current Position 
As at 30

th
 Sept 

2015 
 

£m 

2015/16 
Revised 
Estimate 

 
£m 

Gross borrowing      67.830         74.622       74.504 

CFR* (year end position)      73.870         87.350       87.350 

Authorised limit for external debt 2015/16 
Original 
Indicator 

£m 

Current Position 
As at 30

th
 Sept 

2015 
£m 

2015/16 
Revised 
Indicator 

£m 

Borrowing       60.827         65.619         65.501 

Other long term liabilities*                0                  0                0 

Total       60.827         65.619       65.501 

Page 66



Risk Assessment                  Appendix  2  
 

The risk Original risk 
score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk ref. Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred 
to risk 
register 

 LOBO Loans - If £7m of 
these loans is recalled by 
the banks if they choose to 
exercise their option then we 
would need to have the 
resources on the day to 
repay. Alternative borrowing 
arrangements at today’s 
current rates would be 
favourable for the Council 

Section 
151 
Officer 
Paul 
Jones 

 

24
th
 

January 
2012 

1 2 2 Accept If the loans are recalled 
the council could take out 
temporary borrowing 
which is currently much 
lower than the rates on 
these loans. Any capital 
receipts available could 
also be used to repay 
debt. 

March 
2016 

Section 
151 Officer 
Paul Jones 

 

 

 

 

P
age 67



P
age 68

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	5 Housing Revenue Account New Build - Swindon Road Site
	2015_12_08_CAB_New_Build_Swindon_Road_Appendix2_site_Location
	2015_12_08_CAB_New_Build_Swindon_Road_Appendix 3_Tender Report
	2015_12_08_CAB_New_Build_Swindon_RoadAppendix 4 - financial assessment

	6 Treasury Mid-Term Report 2015/16
	2015_12_08_CAB_Mid term_Treasury_Report_App1
	2015_12_08_CAB_Mid term_Treasury_Report_App2


